ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE COMMUNI TY AND REAQ ONAL AFFAI RS
STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 20, 2001
8:08 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Carl Morgan, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Andrew Hal cro
Representative Drew Scal zi
Representati ve G etchen Guess

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Li sa Mirkowski
Representative Beth Kerttul a

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 1
Relating to establishing a Task Force on a Statew de
Conpr ehensi ve Energy Pl an.

- MOVED CSHCR 1(CRA) OUT OF COWMM TTEE
PREVI OUS ACTI ON
BI LL: HCR 1

SHORT TI TLE: STATEW DE COMP ENERGY PLAN TASK FORCE
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) BERKOWN TZ

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/12/01 0066 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/12/01 0066 (H CRA, L&C

01/12/01 0066 (H REFERRED TO COVWUNI TY &
REG ONAL AFFAI R

01/17/01 0117 (H COSPONSOR('S) :  KAPSNER

01/19/01 0134 (H COSPONSOR('S): LANCASTER

02/ 19/ 01 0375 (H COSPONSOR(S): HALCRO

02/ 20/ 01 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE ETHAN BERKOW TZ

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -1- February 20, 2001



Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 404

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HCR 1.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-9, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the House Comunity and Regional
Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 8:08 a.m
Representatives Mrgan, Meyer, Halcro, Scalzi, and Guess were
present at the call to order.

HCR 1 - STATEW DE COVP ENERGY PLAN TASK FORCE

Nunber 0062

CO CHAIR MEYER announced that the commttee would hear HOUSE
CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 1, Relating to establishing a Task
Force on a Statew de Conprehensive Energy Pl an.

REPRESENTATI VE ETHAN BERKOW TZ, Al aska State Legislature,

testified as the sponsor of HCR 1. Representative Berkow tz
remarked that HCR 1 deals with a pressing issue that the state
has yet to deal wth. This proposal speaks to the issue of

energy for Al aska. Representative Berkowitz noted the national
di scussion regarding the need for a national energy plan.
Al t hough npst states have an energy plan, Al aska does not have a
conpr ehensi ve energy plan. Representative Berkowitz explained
that HCR 1 attenpts to accelerate and consolidate existing
proposals and perhaps present a wunified package to the
congressional delegation in order to obtain resources to
i npl enent parts of a plan. Representative Berkowtz inforned
the commttee that the Al aska Industrial Devel opnent and Export
Authority (AIDEA) and the Denali Commssion are currently
working on a rural plan, which my, over the next few years,
include other parts of the state. However, there is still no
overal | strategy from the state and thus Representative
Berkowitz felt that it is encunbent upon the legislature to
create such.

Number 0274

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ expressed the need to determne the
needs of the state not only in ternms of noney but also in terns

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 2- February 20, 2001



of energy. This is critical to the economc devel opnent and

quality of life that is desired [in Al aska]. He noted that
there are many interesting efforts in the area of energy, such
as the windmll project in Kotzebue and the fuel cell [project]
i n Anchor age. Fuel cells are interesting because they can use

natural gas and thus increase the demand for natural gas.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ remarked that he is not normally a fan
of resolutions or task forces. However, the objective of [HCR
1] is to have a cohesive plan for the future and have access to
the resources to inplenent that plan.

Number 0393
CO- CHAI R MEYER noted that HCR 1 does not have a fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said there should be no cost for the
task force. He pointed out that HCR 1 specifies that there wll

be no per diem [for the nmenbers]. In further response to Co-
Chair Meyer, Representative Berkowtz indicated that the
neetings woul d occur in Anchorage and people would pay for their
own travel. Representative Berkowitz reiterated his desire to
accelerate sone of the ongoing processes. He noted that the
task force does not include [a representative fron] AIDEA or the
Denal i Comm ssi on. However, he indicated that perhaps those

groups shoul d be incl uded.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked if Representative Berkowitz had spoken with
Robert Poe, Executive Director, AIDEA, Departnment of Comunity &
Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ answered that he has spoken with M.
Poe and others on the list and all are very supportive of this.
However, he explained that what he and those on the list didn't

want is to develop a conpeting project. Rat her, he wants to
hel p any ongoing |[projects]. The presence of the l|egislature
and [this] process can help. Representative Berkowitz noted
that the Al aska Muinicipal League (AM.) is supportive of the plan
as "it appears that the task force could be of benefit in

steering the process and ensuring that there's broad public
participation.”

CO CHAIR MEYER expressed concern with the [lack of a fiscal
note] because he believes that any conmttee of this magnitude
and diversity will have sonme expenses. Therefore, he indicated
that there may be the need to add sonething to the fiscal note,
even if it is nerely for adm nstrative support.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 3- February 20, 2001



COCHAIR MEYER then turned to the conmittee packet, which
includes lowa's energy plan. He asked if Representative
Berkowi tz intended on using that plan [as a nodel] for Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ answered that he didn't have anything

in particular in mnd. He informed the commttee that he has
energy plans from nany other states. Al t hough the plans have
simlarities, there are differences in regard to each state's
i ndi vi dual needs. He expected that Alaska would have unique
needs.

Nunber 0650

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI related his understanding that the task
force would inplenent its own plan based on the evidence.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ replied yes and added that [the task
force would act] on the research that is already avail able. He
reiterated his desire to bring together those [working on] a
pr oj ect or pl an in or der to review [this matter|
conpr ehensi vel y.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI, again, related his understanding that the
task force would have the latitude to come up with a plan

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ replied yes.

Nunmbe 0762

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO referred to page 2, lines 21-22, which
specifies that the task force will not be responsible for any
travel expenses or per diem Representative Halcro expressed
the need for the task force to also be responsible for finding
funding nechanisns to pay for [the plan]. In regard to the

menbership of the task force, Representative Halcro inquired as
to the reasoni ng behind the Al aska Trucki ng Associ ati on nmenber.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ specified that the Al aska Trucking
Associ ation nenber is viewed as a [representative] of a consuner
group of energy. He remarked that he is not "married" to anyone
on the menbership list of the task force. In regard to
Representative Halcro's suggestion that the task force also be
responsi ble for finding funding mechanisnms to pay for the plan

Representative Berkowitz said he viewed the suggestion as
friendly.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -4- February 20, 2001



Number 0904

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS inquired as to who would chair the task
force.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ explained that normally such a task
force would be chaired by the legislators and their staff would
[ provide support for the task force]. However, Representative
Ber kowi tz expressed the need to remain flexible so that the task
force can make such determ nations.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS indicated agreenment that AIDEA and the
Denal i Commi ssion should be included in the task force
menber shi p. She al so expressed the need to include the genera
busi ness community as a nenber of the task force.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ renarked that the task force, [if nore
and nore nmenbers were added] coul d becone unw el dy.

Nunmber 0992

COCHAIR MORGAN related his view that the focus of this task
force wll be geared toward rural Al aska, where energy costs are
high. He asked if that assessnment woul d be correct.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ answered that there wll be a l|arge
focus on rural Alaska. He pointed out that the conmmttee packet
includes the draft assessnment for rural Al aska devel oped by

AIDEA and the Denali Comm ssion. However, Representative
Berkowitz expressed the need to nove from the point at which
things are broken down between rural and urban. For instance,
whatever route is taken, the gas pipeline will help with the
energy needs of both rural and urban Al aska. Ther ef or e,
determ ning optinmal nechanisns for that should be done before
construction begins. Furthernore, the state needs to be
actively involved in the process. Representative Berkowtz

said, "You need to know what you want before you can get it and
this is going to help us assess what we want as a state.”
Al t hough Representative Berkowitz appreciated the concern for
rural Al aska, he indicated the need to use the task force as a
way to bring the state together to establish |inks between urban
and rural Al aska.

Number 1120

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI turned to the bibliograph of statew de
energy studies supplied by Legislative Research Services and

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 5- February 20, 2001



hi ghlighted the followng titles: "Al aska Energy Strategy" and
"Alaska Rural Energy Initiative." He asked if Representative
Berkowitz had reviewed any of the docunents |isted because he
wondered if any of the listed docunents speak to what is desired
[with the inception of the task force].

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ specified that no one has done what is
bei ng sought with the task force. Even if sonmeone has | ooked at
what he is hoping the task force wll review, it is time to
update that information

CO-CHAIR MEYER noted that the task force is to have its
reconmendati ons conpleted by January 19, 2002. He asked if that
[timeframe would allow the task force to] influence the gas
pi pel i ne.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said, "I don't know. | hope it is."
CO CHAI R MEYER wondered if that [timefrane] would be too |ate.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ acknow edged t hat U S Senat or
Mur kowski has been actively discussing a national energy plan.
Furthernmore, U. S. Congressnman Young, Chair of the Transportation
Depart ment , and uU. S. Senat or St evens, Menber of t he
Appropriations [Comrittee], [hold positions that could possibly
help with this issue]. Therefore, Representative Berkowtz
remar ked, "Sonething can happen on account of this." Thus, it
is critical for the [state] to have a plan. The second step
i npl enentation of a plan, cannot occur if what "we" want to do
i S unknown.

Number 1309

REPRESENTATIVE HALCRO noved that the commttee adopt the
fol |l ow ng amendnent:

Page 1, line 15:
I nsert new paragraph (3) to read as foll ows:
"(3) to recommend financing options including
federal, state or nunicipal grants, bonds or
ot her neans; and"

Renunber the remai ni ng paragraph.

There bei ng no objection, the anmendnent was adopt ed.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 6- February 20, 2001



Nunber 1410

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO noved to report HCR 1 as anmended out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
zero fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS announced that she wanted to offer another
anendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO wi t hdrew hi s noti on.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS inquired as to the commttee's opinion of
having a nenber from AIDEA and the Denali Conmm ssion, since
those are groups that are doing sone of these energy projects.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO related the notion of having the two
presiding officers appoint one nenber each, rather than two, and
then two nenbers could be added, one representing Al DEA and one
representing the Denali Conm ssion.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS expressed interest in the sponsor's
thoughts in regard to including representatives from Al DEA and
the Denali Comm ssion. She expressed concern with decreasing
the presiding officers' appointnents to one each because of the
resulting lack of mnority representation.

Nunber 1512
CO CHAIR MORGAN said he wondered if a subconmmttee should be
appointed in order to deal with the conposition and cost of the

task force.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ answered that he would |ike to have the

process nove al ong. In regard to having two additional nenbers
on the task force, Representative Berkowitz said he believes it
woul d be a "good thing." He acknow edged that the comrittee may

want to strike one or two nenbers, if the commttee feels the
task force is getting too | arge.

CO-CHAIR MEYER reiterated Representative Halcro's suggestion,
whi ch woul d not increase the nmenbership of the task force.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO reiterated Representative Guess' point

that limting the presiding officers' appointnments to one each
would result in the elimnation of a representative from the
M nority Caucus. Representative Halcro expressed his belief

that it would be nore inportant to have a representative from

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -7- February 20, 2001



the Denali Conm ssion versus the Alaska Trucking Association.
He also indicated the possibility of elimnating the
respresentative from AM. because there would, certainly, be
regi onal and community invol venent.

CO CHAIR MEYER stated that once the commttee becones involved
in elimnating nmenbers, this could get nmessy and thus he would
reconmend creating a subconm ttee. Per haps, expanding the task
force to 15 nmenbers would be the easiest way in which to deal
with this. He inquired as to the sponsor's opinion.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKONTZ noted his agreenent wth adding a
representative from Al DEA and the Denali Commi ssion.

Nunber 1707

REPRESENTATIVE GGUESS noved that the comittee adopt the
fol |l owi ng anendnent :

Page 2, line 20, insert a new nunber:

"(12) one nenber appointed by the executive director
of the Denali Conm ssi on;

(13) one nenber appointed by the executive director of
Al DEA"

There being no objection, the amendnent was adopt ed.
Nunber 1749

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO nobved to report HCR 1 as anended out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
zero fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHCR 1(CRA) was
reported from the House Community and Regional Affairs Standing
Commi ttee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

The House Community and Regional Affairs Standing Conmittee
nmeeting took an at-ease at 8:35 a.m in order to prepare for the
presentation from the Al aska Native Health Board, which can be
found under the mnutes of the sanme date but with the tinme of
8:36 a.m

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 8- February 20, 2001



